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Amsterdam, 5 november 2010

Inzake: deponering 2009 jaarstukken A.W. Jakobs Groep B.V.

Geachte heer/mevrouw,

Hierbij deponeren wij de jaarrckening 2009 inzake:
AW, Jakobs Groep B.V.

(ingeschreven onder nummer: 34251540)
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De jaarrekening is op 3 november 2010 door de algemene vergadering van aandeethouders

vastgesteld. —

Wij verzoeken u vriendelijk ons een bevestiging van de deponering te verstrekken.

Bij voorbaat dank,
hoogachtend,

A.W. Jakebs Groep B.V.

, De handtekening
: is door de KvK d
dﬂ onleesbaar gemaakt.

A.W. Jakobs
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Management report

.2009 has been a turbulent year for the Group. Even though the total financial result is negative, we can
‘look back on a.successful acquisition by our subsadiary All Opuons of Saen Cptions and the purchase of
-the majority in'shares of Nibo by All Capital. Next to this there were some good results at our other
-subsidiaries or participations.

We can proudly look back the past year at impressively raising the intemal standards of professionalism
within the whole group throughout alt our subsidiartes,

‘All Options has expanded their leading position in equity denvauves during the year. In the fourth quarter
thers was & strong growth in the Indeut market making with a teamwork effort that serves as an example
for ‘successtsl cooperation within Al Opﬂons ‘and off coyrse the ‘purchase and integration of Saen
:Options.

inNibo we have successiully acquired a majority of shares per the beginining 6f 2009 and is now owned
by B9,7% per the end of 2009. Nibo itse!f also had a turbulea‘d year because of the challenging economic
circumstances throughotit the year but managadto end the year with a small positive result of EUR 40k.

For 2010 the cutiook for Nibo looks promising. All Capltai haa further expanded its share in Nibo during
thefirst months of 2010,

Regarding our other subsidiary ExSilent, they had a year of transition to become a mature company with
a good line of products. Also they started a subsidiary in America.

Next to'this All Capital holds an intefest in several very divérse companies, among others; Dyzle- real-
time infermation and plug and play solutions and Blue Medical -“design, production and sales of medical
devices,

For our real estate activities within Al Monuments no major changes has occurred during 2009. The
focus during last year was on the renovation of the *Krakeling” complex which had its kickof in 2009. it is
expected that the complete renovation will be finished in 2010.

Also the financing activities were profitable dunng 2009 with:a salid result of 300k of interest income on
the outstanding facifities of debtor financing, factoring and stock fnancing.

During the year investments have been done in mortgages portfolios which looks promising in tenms of
return. Cumrently the forecast shows the expeded return will be achieved.

The board is' convinced-that a welt balanced governance is essential for achieving the quality that we, |
aim.for r running our business. We realize. that a!though we have greatly improved our team work on the
boafd lével, we will nead to take further steps in201a ‘

Looklng forward we are confident we will achieve a positive result'again with the promising outlook at alf ‘
of our admhes within All Capital Holding.

A year end the Group employed 554 smﬁ,‘j'to which we'd ali like to express our gratitude for their
contribution to the Group:
)

AW, Jakobts bl
CEO
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December (before
appropriation of net result)

In EUR x 1,000

Assets

Non-current assets:

intangible assats

Property, plant and equipment-
Investment property
Biclogical assets

Investmets in associates

Other non-current financia agsets
Total non-current agsets

Current assels:
Inventories

Trading assets
Due from clearing institutions
Due from shareholder

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current agsets

Total assets

AWJG

~N DO A WN
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2009 2008
10,084 839
34,863 17,593
13,582 12,818
41,568 -
351 13,164
28,358, 11,502
129,806 55,917
3,249 674
1,009,81
2 1,313,595
137,454, 75,187
oo 16,530
40,884 11,537
55,243 72,084
124664
2 1,489,817
1,376,448 1,545,534

* To improve comparabllity the 2008 numbers have beon recizased and es a result différ trom the Annual Report published

28t yoar,

KPMG Audit

Document to which cur report dated

23 JUN 200 -

also refers.

iditials for identification aurnnses 42




AWJG

Consolidated balance sheet

‘As at kil December (befora proﬂl
approprlaﬂon)

In EUR X 1,000

'Share capital

‘Legal reserves

Currency transiaﬁon freserve

Retairied earnings

Unappopriated result for the yaar

Total equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent

Non:controfling m:erests

Total equity

Liabil

Non-current liabilitias:
Provisions

Imerest-beanng Ioans payable:
Deferred tax iiabilities )
Total non-current tiabilities

Current liabiiities..

Trading fiabilities

Due to c!eamg institutions:

Dus to certiied depository receipt holders
Pravlslons

Trade and other Itabmtles

Tolal current liabilities

Total fabllities’

Totat equity and liabiliges:

13

14

15

16

10
17
14
18

2009 2008
18 18
708 475
(1,016) 47
239,895 186,043
(33,143) 80,207
206,462 266,790
34 880 -
241382 266,790
44,574 -
2,138 .
1,057 121
47,769 121

974008 1,010,156

69,728 205,547
4,556 14,580
3,325 -

35,720 48,330

1,087,337 1,278,623

*1,135,106 1,278,744.

1376448 1545534

. To improve com parability-the 2008 numbers hdve beeri reciassed and £3 & result difer from the Annual Rapnﬂ published

last year.

-
9
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AWJG

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December

10 EUR k1,000

‘Net trading-income -

‘Sale of goods

Rental income

Interest income

‘Revenue from continulng operations

‘Cost of sales.
Gross margin

Other operating income

Personnel expenses

Depreciation, amortization and impairment
expenses )

General and administrative expenses.
Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)income
Finance revenue

Finance costs
Net finance {costs)/reverue

Share of (loss)/profit of associates (nét of income tax)

{Losa)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net {loss)/profit

Atfributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Nen-controling interests

Note 2008 2008
19 45034 130,796
19: 4,208 189

445 281

1,484 741

51,259 131,987

(3,083) (184)

48,166 131,803

20 2,745 -
pal 32,153 21,582
22 12,421 1,243
23 32,566 13,014
77.140 35,839

(26,229) 95,064

1,072 1,324

(2,088) (81)

24 (1,018) 1,243
6 (24) 2,378
{27,269} 89 585

25 7173 19,378
_ (34.442) 80,207
(33,143) 80,207

(1.289) -

* To imprave comparablity the 2008 num bars have besn rectassed and &s @ result diffe r from the Annual Report

published last y ear.

K

I
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Consolidated statement of comp
income

For the year ended 31 December

I EUR x 1,000

‘Net (losa)fproﬂt:

Other comprehensive income:.
-Foreign curcancy transtation
differences for foreign operations:
“Total comprehensive income for
.the year-

Attbytable to;
-Equity holders of the parent
'Nor-controlling interests

Note

2009 2008
(34,442) 80,207
{1,577) . 4'-1
(36,019) 80,254
(34,208) 80,254
(1,813 -
KPMG Audit
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December.
in EUR x 1,000
‘Cash flows from operating activities

Operating (foss)income for the year:

Adjustments for:

Amortisation

Depreciafion

IFRS adjustments

Impairment losses on intangble assets
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
Loss on d:sposal of property, plant and equipment
Change i in fair value of biologicat assets

Change in &ir value of FVTFL morigage portfolios
impairment losses of non-Current financial assets
Change In fair value due to certified deposiory
recaipt holders

Change in inventeries

Change in trading assets

Change in due from clearing institutions

Change in trade and cther receivables:

Change in lradlng Ilabllltles

Change I dus to dearing institutions

Change in provisions

Changem due to certfied depository receipt holders
Change in frade and other payables

Cash gen_erated from operating activities

Interast receved

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cagh from operating activities

Cash flows from'Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of intangible assets

lnveslments in development expenditure.
Aoqusmon of property, plant and equipment
Acqussmon of investment property

Plantations and acquisitions ofnon-current biological assets

Investments in associates
Inmtments in other non-current financial assets, net
Net cash used In Investing activities’

w w

NN NWWN ADN

~SAbE@WNN S

2009 2008
{26.229) 85,964
1,318 54
5577 1,189
. 24 096
3175 .
2,351 -
- 15
3,189 -
(444) i
(1,722 -
263 _ (2,891)
{12,522) 118,427
-1 (325)
392,579 (223,740}
(2,224) 21,297
16,872 14,999°
(140,096) (76.146)
(165,944) 202,208
23,012
(10,034) {18, 785)
__{5951) (42.275)
95,919 {4,340
1,072 1,324
(2,088) (81)
(33,175)_ {8,966)
61,728 (12063) "
{14,881} -
(151) -
{312 (475)
(2.874) (18,576)
{1,047) (3.800)
{65) :
. {8.665)
{20,008) (6,067)
$9:939) (35.583)
KPMG Audit
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AWJG

:Cash ﬂm ‘from ﬁnandng activities
Repaymems of lnterest-beanng loans

Acquisition of ion-contralling interests’
Dividends'paid

Net cash used in inancing activities’

Net decrease in cash and cash equlvalenta
,Cash and cash equwalents at January 1
Eﬁect of exchange rate fluctuations

Cash arid cash equivalerits at 31 December (Note 12)

15 {177, -
1 (8.054) -
13 (27,933) (8.000)
{37.164) (8,000)
(14,575 {55,846)
72,084 128,105
{2.276) (365)
55,243 72,094
KPMG Audit
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

A The Company and its operations

8 Basis of préparation’

C Summary of significant aceounting policies

D New standaris and intérpretations not yet adopted
E Financial risk management

F Fair valie of finandial instruments

1: Business combinations.

2 Intangible sssets

3’ Property, plant and étg'ui‘prhém

4, Invesiment property
'5Bioiogical assets

6 Investment in associates

7 Other non-current fingnéial assets
8. Inventories

2 Trading assels and fiabilities

10 Dye from /o clearing instiiutions
1‘1,-_Trada and other receivables’

12 Cash and cast equivalents:
13'Capital and reserves’

14 Provisions.

15 Interest-bearing ioans payable.
16 Deferred tax assets and liabiliiés
17 Due to certified depository receipt holders:
18 Tréde and ather ligbilities

19 Revenue

20 Cther operating income

21 Personnel expenses
22 Depreciation, amoitisation expense and Impairment expense
23 General and administrative expenses.-

24'Net findinde cosls’

25 Income tax expense

26 Contingencies and commitments

27 List of subsidiaries.

28 Relatad parties”

29 Auditors: fees

30 Subsequent events

31 First time adoption
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AWJG

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

A, The Company and its aperations

AW. Jekobs Group B.Y. (AWJG' or the Company') wis incorporated on July 4% 2006 and is
domiciled in The Netheriends.

The consofidated financial statements of AWJG as at, ‘and for the year ended 31 December
2009 comprise AWJG and its controlied subsidiaies (togethet referred to.as the *Group” and
individually as “Group entities”).,

The main activities of Ih‘e':Cqmpany are participating in and managing of various entities, The
Group entities are listed in Note 27,

The sole shareholder of the Company is Mr. A W. Jakobs,

B. Basis of preparation

B.1 Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial steterients have been prepared in accordance- with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the - European Union. These are the
Group’s first consolidated fnancial statements and IFRS 1.has baen applied.

An explanation of how the transition to IFRSs'has affected the-reporied financial position,
financial performance and cash lows of AWJG is provided on pages 47 to 48.

The consolidated financidl statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
:June 23,2010,

The Greup. applies revised 1AS 1 Pnesenraaon of Fmancral Stataments (2007), which became
effective as of 1 January 2009. As & rasuh. the Group presents in'the cnsolidated statement of
changes.in equity all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are
prasented in the consolidated sttement of comprehansive incoms.

B.2 Adoptlon of new and revised {FRSs
‘New and revised IFRS which became efiective in the period covered by these first IFRS
ﬁnanqal statements have aﬁected the comparetive amounts of the prior year as required and
take into acoount -the ophona! and mandatory exemptions for first time adopters as set out in
IFRS 1. When-the adnpﬂon of the standard or intefpreta\on is deemed {6 have an impact on
the financial statement, the impact is described below:

IFRS 3 Business Combinatons (Revised) and 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (Amended)

The Group adopted the revised IFRSs from 1 January 2008. IFRS 3 (Revised) introduces
significant changes in the sccounting for business combinations ‘oceurting ater this dete.

IFRS 7 Financia) Instruments: Disciosures M
The amended standard requires additionad disclos % @’%&‘8’.‘%’"9“‘ and

liquidity risk. Document 10 which our report dated

23 JUN 200 4
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AWJIG

B.3 Basls of measurement

The consolidated finnclal statéments are preparéd on the historical cost basis' except for the.
foliowing:

+ financid instruments at fair vatue through profit or loss are measured at fair value;
« avallable-for-sale financial assets aremeasured at far value;
» biclogical assets are'measured at fair valie léss cogts to sell;

B.4 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidaied financial statemerits are’ prasented in euro, which is the Group's functnonat
currency. All financtal information presented-in euroc has been rounded to the nearest tholsand
except when ctherwise indicated.

8.5 Basis of consolidation
a Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controliéd by tha. Group. Control exists when the Group has the power
to govemn the financial and operating paiicies of 'an .entity $o as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The financial statements of ;subsidiaries are included in the consdiidated financial
statements from the date that contral is transferred until the date that contro! ceases. The
accourting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when nacessary to align them with the
policies adopted by the Group.” The acquisition date is the date'on which control is transferred
to the acquirer. '

b Transactions diminated on consolidaton _
All intra-group balances and transactions, income and expenses, unrealised gains and losses

and dividends resulting from intra-group transacﬂms are eliminated in full. upon preparing the
consoida‘ted financial statements..

8.6 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation’ of financlal statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
‘and assumptions that"affect the application of aocoumng policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual resutts may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underying' assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
.accourting estimates are recogrised in the period in which the éstimata is revised and'in any
future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements, 8stimations and uncertainties that have significant effect
‘on the amiounts recognized in thé consalidated financial statements is included below.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

An impairment exists when the carrying valie of an asset or cash-generating-unit exceeds its’
‘Tecoverable amount, which is the higher of its'fair valus Iess’ coits to sell and its value in use.
The fair. value less costs to sell calculation is biased on =vailable data from binding sales
transaction’ at ‘ams’ lengths. transaction: of similar assets of obsarvable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset, The value in use calculation is based on a

discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are denved e pudaet for the next five years’
and do net included restructuring activiies that the. Group k] 1 :, l,-.u mitted to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset's performafce ofthd s HSPRAEEIT; it being
tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rite ”%Hem%lqéﬂsﬂ?&{‘mmpm dated

23 JUN 2010
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AWJG

cash flow model as well as the expected future! cash inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used o determine the recoverable amount for-
the different cash-generating-urits, are further explained in Note 2.

Taxes

Uncertainties ex{st with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount-
and fiming of future taxable income. Given the wide range of intemnational business
refationships and the long-tem nature and cb"niple:dty of existing contractual agreements,

differences arising between the actUa results-and the assumpﬂons made, or future changes to
such assumptions, colld nacessitate future adjus!ments to' tax income and expenses already
recorded The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax. authorities of the respective courtries in which it operates.

The amount of such provigion is based on various fctors, such'as experience of previous tax
audits and differing interpretations of tax regutations by the'taxable entity and the respornsible
tax authority. Such differances of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues
dependng on the conditions prevailing in the respaictive GroUp company's domicile.

Deferred tax assets. are racognized for ail unused tax losses to the extent that is probable that
taxable profit will be available. against wxlh the losses can-be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine theamount of defermed tax assets that can be recognized;
based upon the likely timing and’ the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
p[anning strategies.

“The' Group has tax losses carry forwards amounhng to EUR 54 million {2008 EUR 0). These
losses relate to subsrd:anes that have-a histo:y of losses .do .ot expire and may not be used to
offset taxable mcome elsewhere in the Group The subsidiary has not taxable temporary
dltferencas ner anytax plannng opport.mrties available that could paruy support the recogniton
of these logses as deferred tax assets.

Key assumpbms tonceming the future and other kay sources of estimations uncertairty at the
batanice sheet date, that have a slgn:ﬁwnt risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying

-aimount of assets and liabilities within the .next’ financial year are discussed betow. Further
details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Impatrment of Goodwill

The group determines whether goodwilt is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the 'value in use’ of the cash-generatng-umts ta which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating'a value in use amount requlres rnanagement to make an estimate of the
-expected future cash flows from the: cash-garerahng unit &nd also to choose a suitable
-discount rate in order to calculate the- present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount
of goodwill at 31 December 2004 was EUR.- 8, 764 (2008: EUR D). Further detils are given in
Note 2.

B.7 Principles for the prepaation of the consolidated statament of cash flows

The consolidated statement of cash flows presents cash flows during the period classified by
‘operating, investing and financing activities using the-indi ol. Qash flows in foreign
currencies are transiated in euro at the date of transactions.

KEMG Audit
Currency and transtation differences are eliminated to the extent that they RavwerlrissyhichAur repont dated
cash ﬁows
23 JUN 2010
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C. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set.out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial at_a'tgménts and in preparing an Opening IFRS Balance Shest at
1 January 2008 for the purpose of the transition to IFRS.

The accoynting policies have been applied consistently by &ll Group entities.

C.1 Accounting for business combinations

The Group has adopted eafly IFRS 3 Business Cambinaons (2008) and IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate. Financid Statemerits.{2008) for all’ business combinations occuring in the
financial year :stating 1 January 2009. All business combinations occuming on or after
1 January 2009 are accounted for by applying the acquisition method..

The Group has applied the ecquisition method for the business combination disclosed in Note 1.

The Group measures 'goodwm as the fair value of the-consideration transferred including the
recognised amount of . any non-controlling interest in the acqulree, less the net recognised

amount (genera!y fair value) of the idermﬁable assets acquired and liabilitles assumed, all
measured ds of the acquisition date:

Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, kabilities incurred
by the Group to the previous owners of the acquirée, and equity interests issued by the Group.
Considaration transferred also Iricludes the fair valie of any contingent consideration and
-share-based payment awards of the.acquiree’ that are replaced mandatosly in the business
combination (see below). If a business mmblnat;on resuits in the tenmination of pre-existing
relationships between the Group and the acquiree; then the lower,of the temination amourt, as
contained in the -agreement; and the value of the: oﬂ‘-mancet element is deducted from the
ounmderdmn transferred and recognised in cther expenses.

VWhen share-based payment awards exchanged {replacement awards) for awards held by the
acquiree’s employaes (acqulrees awards) relate m pasl services, then a-part of the market-
based measure of the awards replaced [ included in: the constderatmn transferred. If they
require fiitire services, then the difference between the amount included in ‘consideration
transferred and ‘the market-based measure of the replacement’ awards is treated as post-
combination cornpensat[on cost.

A contingent liability of the acquiree:is assumed in a business combination only if such a
liability represents a'présent obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be
measured refiably.

The Group measures any non-controffing interest at its proportionate inferest in the identifiable:
net ageets of the acquiree.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in corinéction with a business combination, such as
finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other pi o consuiting fees are
expensed as incurred.

KPMG Audit
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C.2 Goodwill

Goodwill represerts the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Company's interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabiities and contingert liabilities at the date of
acquisition, and is carried st cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwillis measured at
cost less' accumulated impairment losses.. Impairment. losses are charged to the income
statement. Goodwill is tested for ‘impairment at [east annually or when evenis and
circumstances indicate impairment testing may be riecessary. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an etity include the carrying amatint of goodwill relating 10 the entity sold.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaties is separately shown in the statement of financial
position as an intangible asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwil is aflocated to
eath of the cash-generating-units (o groups of: cash-generating-units) that is expected to
beneft from the synergies of a; ‘business combination..Each unit (or group of units) to which the
goodwill i allocated, represerts the fowest level withiri’ the*Company at which the goodwill is
monitored for intemal management purposes ‘and that. Is not larger than a segrnent Cash-
generating-units to which gocdwill nas been anocated are tested for impaiment annually, or
more frequently when there is an Indication’ that‘the cash—generallng-unit may be impaired,
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is assessed for impairment as part of the investment
whenever.there is an :nd:catlon that the mv&stment may be impaired An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount.by which the cash-generting-unit's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount, The recoverable amount.is'the higher of & cash-generating-unit's fair
value less cost o sell and its value in use. An impairient foss is aliocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of the goodwill and then to the other assets of the cash-generating-unit pro
rata on the .basis of the camying amount of each asset in the- cash-generating-unit. An
impairmént loss recognized for goodwill s not reversed in subsequent periods,

C.3 Foreigncurrency
a Transaction and balaces
AWJG's consalidated statements*are presented in euros, which is the. company's functional
curency. Each entity of the Group defermines s own fund.lonai cumrency-and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are mea.sumd uging the funwenal cumency.

Transaction in foreign cuimencies- are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective
function cumency rate prevailing &t the date of fransaction..

‘Monetary assets ‘and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency at the exchange rate at thet date.

Non‘monetary items that are measured in terms of histerical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at:the dates-of the initial transactions.. Non-monetary
items measured at fair-value in a forelgn curency are translated using the exchahge rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. Foreign currercy differences arising on retransiation
are recognised in the-income statement, except for differances on the retransiation of available
for sale equily instruments.

b Group companies
The assets and fiabilites of foreugn ‘operations are. trans!a at the rate of the,
aexchange prevailing at the reponing date and their inco! nsiated at
exchange rates prevajfing at the date of the transactions. The exchange dl!ﬁ?

the :translation are recognised ‘in ‘other compreh&nsive income. On di e t’i‘or.e §h our feport dated
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operation, the compénent of other comprehensive income relating to that particwlar foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition of a foreign entity are considered as
assets and liabilities denominated in the functional cumrency of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

C.4 Cash and cash equivalents

C.§

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short term deposils
with origina maturities of less than three monihs.

For the ﬁurpg_se‘of the consofidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-tenn deposits net of outstanding bank overdrafts,

Financial Ingtruments
a General

“The Group classifies its non-derivative financial assets as financial assets at fair value through

the profit and loss (frading & assebs and liabilties).

The ciass:ﬁcanon depends on the purpese. for which the financial assets were -acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial reoognlhon Reference
is made to F for a comparison bistween fair value and the canymg value of all Group financial
instruments.

Recognitionand derecognltion ofnon-derivative financial agsets

The Group initially recognises financial assets-and liabilities {including assets and liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or 1oss) initially on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of thé instrument:

The Group derecogrises.a financidl assét when the contractiial rights to the cash flows from
the'asset expire, or it transfers-the rights to receive the contractual cash fiows on the financial

‘assel in & transaction.in which substamally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

ﬁnandal asset are transferred Any interest in transforred financial assets that is created or

‘retalned by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liabilly.

The Group derecognises finahcial liability when its contractual dbligations are discharged or
canceled or expire:

The rights and obligations ‘retained in the.transfer are-recognised separately as assets and
llabilities as appropriate. In transfers where control over. the ‘asset retained, the Group
continues {0 recognise the assel to the extent of its conhnumg involvement, determined by the
extent to which itis exposed fo changes inthe value of the transferred asset

Financial assets and liabilitles, at fair value through profit and loss {trading assets and
liabilities)

An instrument is:classified at fair vatue through - proﬁi orloge
designated as such upon’ initial recognition. Financial nst ‘
through profit or ‘loss if the Group manages such investmE

s—held for trading or is
Eyoesignated at fair value

ke ppeLAgR A sale

decisions based on their fair value in accordance -with the Group's,documentedicrisiur repon dated

management or investment strategy. Upon initial. recogriition attributable transaction costs are
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recognised in profit or Idss when incurred. Fmancual mstrumems at fair value- thmugh profit or
loss are measured at fair value, 'and changes therein are nacognised in the incorre statement.

Securites owned (Iong} and securities soid, not yet purchased (shoft), represent held-for-
trading assets and Ilabllmes respectively. Purchiases and sales of securities are recognized at
{rade date, and except as otherwise described below, the Group applies trade date accounting.
to the subsequent derecognition of positiond in securihes Posit:ons in securities are carried at’
fair value, with fair value changes reoognzed as:revenue m the income statement, as such
changes occur. Securities owned ahd securities sold, not yet. purchased are valued at the
guoted bid and ask price, respectively. Securities mmed and securities sold, ot yet purchesed
‘that Kave offsetting market risk-are valued at the mid-price quoted for those instruments. If
quoted market prices are not gvaliable, fair value i estimated using quoted prices of
instruments with similar characteristics. Certain rnatchlng buy and sell transactions in the same
securdy are grossed up for statement of financial posmon presentaticn purposes. Transaction
costs anising-on these finahcial assets and Ilablllllps are included in the income staternent as
incurred.

Financlal liabilittes )

Finarcial iiabﬂ,iﬁesrwiﬂ{h the scope-of IAS 39 areiclassified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans ‘and borrowings, or “as derivatives designaied as hedging
instrurnents in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial liablities at initial recogrition. Alt financial liabilites are recogrised initiafly at fair value
and in the case of Icans and borrowings; plus dxrectly atmwlable transaction costs. The Group
derecognises a financial Hability when Its contracmal obllgations are discharged or canceled or
expire.

‘The Group' has the-following non-derivative financial liabilities: bank overdrafts, and other
hab{hhes Such financial liabilities’ are racogmsed mmally at fair value' plus any directy
attributable transaction costs: Subsequem to initiat reoognmon these financial fiabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financlal guarantees
Fihancial guarantees are- contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to

re|mburse the holder for a loss it incurs becawse a spectﬁed debtor fails to make payrnent when
due in accardance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee liabilities are initialty mcogmsed at their fait value, and the initial fair value
is amortised over the life of the financia guarantee. The guarantee liability is subsequently
‘cairied at the higher of this amonised amount and the present vaiue of any expected payment
(when a payment, under the guarantee has become probable). Financial guarantees are
included within other Babilties.

Offsetting

Financial assefs and liabilifies are set off and the net amount is presented in the statement of
financig! position when, and-only when, the Group has‘a legal right to set off the amounts and
intends_ either to settle on a net basis or to realise th gt | H setlle the liability

simultaneously. KPMG
Audit
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Amounts due fromfto clearing insfitutions _

Amounts due from/to clearing institutions represent receivables for securities sold and payables
for seturities purchased that have been traded but not yet delivered by the end of the year
(unsettled -trades) as well as cash receivable; balances arising in connection with the
cotlaterdlzahon -of trading posihons angd stock borrowing arrangemems Amounts receivable
and payable arising in connection with unsettigd trades are recognized on a gross basis, except
to the extent that there is a (egal right of offset and the Group intends to settie on a net basis.

Intangible assets 5 ‘ '
Software -acquired by the Group is stated atjcost less accumutated amortisation and
accumutated impairment losses.

Expenditure on internalry developed software is fecognised as an assel When the Group is able
to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the devdopment and use the software in a
mannerthat will-generete future ‘economic. beneﬂts ancl can. reliably measure the costs io
complete the development, The capitalised costs of mtemally deveropad software include afl
costs directly atfributable to ‘daveloping the software, and are amortised over its useful life.
internally developed:software is stated at: capltallsed ‘cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment,

Subsequent expenditure on software assets i$ capitalised only when It"increases the future
economic benefits' embodied in the specific asset to which it refates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised in the income: statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the software, from the date that it is’ avallable.for use. The estmate useful life of
software is_hthree to five years.

Property, plant and equipment
Recoegnition and measurement
Property, plant: and eduipment is stated at cost Iess accumulated depreciation andior
accumiliated impaiment losses. Cost includes expendttures that are directly attributable to the

“acquisition of the asset, Purchased software that is integral.to the functionality of the related

equipment is m_aprlaljsed as part of that equipment.

‘When parts of an item of property ar equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted

for as separate ftems (major components) of property and équipment.

Reclassification to nvestment property

‘When the use of a property changes.from owner-ocoupied to investment property, the property

ls remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Properly that.is being
constructed for future use as investment propesty is accounted for at fair value. Any gain arising
on remeasurement is recognised in profit or Ioss to the extent the gain reverses a previous
impairment loss on the specific ﬁmpeﬂy with 'any remaining gain recognised in other
comprehiengive’ iricome. and presented in. the revaluation reserve in equity. Any loss is
recagnised in other comprehensive income and presemed in the revaluation reserve in equity
to the extent that an amotint had previously been lm':l .Es Iﬁ? Hw luation reserve relating to
the specific property, with any remaining loss recognisg iRAELD -K I\r?lﬁé OA ms;t
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¢ Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an fem of property or equipment is recogrised in the camying
amount of the item if it is"probable that the f'utureleconomic_: benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Group and its cost can be messured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day
senvicing of property and equipment are recognisedin‘the income statement as incurred

d Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or-loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
{ives of the asset:

The estimated (seful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows.

« Buildings 40-50 years
+ Plant and equipment 310 years
« Fumiture, fixtures & cars’ 'S years

« Hardware ‘2years

Depreciation methods, Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted if appropriate. Land is nct depreciated.

C.% investment propertles
investment property is properly held either to eam rental income or for capltai appreciation or
for both, but not for-sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services of for admistrative purposes. lnvestment property is stated at cost less
-accumutated depreciation andfor accumutated ernpalrmem Iosses, Cost includes expenditures
that are drectly attributable 0 the acquisition ofthe assel,

When the use-of a property changes<such that it is reciassified as property, plant and
equipment, its-fair value at the date of reclagsifcation becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.

C.10 Biologlcal assets
The plantations are measured on intiat recogrition and annually at its fair value less estimated
point-of-saie costs: Estimated pomt—of-sa!e costs include all costs that would be necessary to
.sell the asset {excluding transport) A gain or loss arismg from'a change in fair value is included
in the income statement:

‘Due to the lack of a running market for teak plantations, the Group opted to use the discounted
value of estimated future cash'flows.. The: eshmated cash fiows were -based on up-to-date
‘information about the status of the plantations at’ September 30, 2009, relying on spot checks:
carried out across the plantations and a forecast grov-th in forest resources in accordance with a
forestry’ rnodel Future market paces arld costs up o, the sale had been forecast also.

The values of the plantations were updated as et September 30,2008 and 2008 in accondance
‘with the above method. in doing s0, the following assumiptions' were used in the valuation modet:

Inflation 2%

Realistic increase in market prices (over and above In 1%

Discount rate 12%
KPMG Audit
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C.11 Due fromv/to clearing institutions
Due fromito’ clearing: institutions: represent recewables for- securities sold and .payables for
securities purdxased that have been fraded but not yet settied by the end of the year as well as
(|on9 and short) cash babnoes with the clearing..

Amounts due from/to clearing institutions- represent receivables for securities sdld and payables
for securities purchased that have been traded but not” 'yet delivered by the end of the year
{unsettied trades) as well as cash recelvable balancas arising in connection with the
coliaterdization of- tradung positions-and stock borrowng arrangements. Amourts receivable
and payablé arising in connection with unsettied trades are. recogmzed on a gross basis, except’
to the extent thaithere is'a legal right of offset and the  Group intends to settle on a ist basis.

C.12 lnventorias
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is based on the first-in first-out pnnclple and mcludes expendltura incurred in acquiring the
irventories, production or conversion costs and, o!her costs incumred in bringing them to thelr
existing location and' ocndit:on In he case of manufactured inventories and work in progress,
cost includes an appropnate share of productlon overheads' based on nommal operating
capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling pdoe in the ordingry course of business, less the
estimated costs:of completion‘and sefling expenses.

C.13 Provislons

A prowslon is recognised if, as a.resutt of a past event, the. Group-has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estlmated rellab!y and it is probable that an outfiow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. If the.effect of the;time value of money is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the ‘expected future cash ﬂows aa pre-tax rate that reflects
cument market assessments of the.time value- of money and .whete appropriate, the risks
‘specific to the” iiabmty Where- dlsoountmg is. used, the-increase in the provision due to the
passdge of time is recognized & a finance cost.

Reimbursemants (such as insurance recoveries, indemnities or warmanties) are recognised as a
-separate-asset when recovery is virtually certain! The amiount recognised is limited to the
.amount of the related provision-In the income statement, thé expense relating to the provision

is preserted net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

A piovision for oflerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Group from a confract are lower than the unavadable cost of meeting its. obligations under
the contract’ The provision is measured &t the present value of the lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and tha expected net cdst of continuing with the contract, Before a
{provision is established, the Group récognises any impairment‘ioss.on the assets associated
with that contract. ‘

C.14 tmpalrment

a Financial assets
At each repoiting date®AWNG assesses whether there is objective eKiB&nce thatfinancial
assets not carried at fair value throughprofit or loss are impaired, Finandisiassets A& impaker; oo dated
when objective. evidenca demonstrates that a ‘loss. averrt has occuired after the initial
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recognition of the asset, and that.the ioss event has an-impact on the estimated future cash
flows on the asset that can be reliably estimated,

Evidence that financial sssets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a borrowef,
resnuctunng ofa, toan or advance by the Group on terms that the group would not otherwise
cons:der indications that-a ‘borrower of issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an
actrve market for.a security, or other observable data refating to a group of assets such as
changes inthe payment status of borroweérs or issuers in the' group, or economic conditions
that comelate with defaults int the group.

The Gréup considers a\ndeme of impamnent fcr receivables at both a specific asset and
collective level, Al Indmdually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. {f
determined that no; objective evidence of |mpairment exists for an individualy assessed
ﬁnancta! asset, whether significant or not, it includes the assetin a gnoup of financial assels
with similar characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

Financial assets measurad at amortised cost

Impaiment losses on financial assets are measured .at amortised cost and cakcutated as the
difference between the camying amount of the financial assets and the presert value of
estimated cash flows. The present value of the estimated future cash flow is discounted at the
assets’ onginal effective interest rate. Losses areirecognised in the income statement under
finance revenue and costs and reflected in an. alfowance account against receivables. interest
on the impaired asset continues to be récognised through the unwinding of the discount. When
a ‘subsequent everl causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment 16ss is reversed through the income statement,

Non-financial assets
“The carrying amcunts ot the Groups non-financial-assets, other.than deferred tax assets, are
‘reviewed at each reporting date to determineg whether.there:ls-any indication of impairment. If
‘any such indication exists, then the asset's récoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinité livés or that are riot yét available for use, the recoverable
‘amount is estimated each year at the same time.

“The recoverable amount of ary asset or-cash-generating untt is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value,less costs to sell. in assessing'value in use, the estimated futiire cash fiows
are discourted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects Current market
assessments of the time value of money and the righs s'peclﬁc to the asset. For the purpose of
‘impaiment tas‘ung assels are grouped together mto the smallest group of assets that
generates cash infiows from continuing use that ara Iargely iindependent of the cash inflows of
other assets o groups of assets {the * wsh-generahng-wt‘) .Goodwill acquired in a business
combination s a!located to groups of cash-genemmg-units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recogrised if the canying amount of an asset or its cash-generating-units
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. lmpalrment Josses -are recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in reswct * Ating-units are allocated first
to reduce the.carrying amount of any goodwil a!l, AP ginits, and then to reduce the
‘camying amounts of the other assets in the unit (gmup ofuritsjona ﬁm &44@
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An impairment loss in respect of geodﬁll is not reversed. In respect of other assets,
impaimment lesses recogmsed in prior periods are assessed -at each reporting date for any

indications that the loss has decreased or no !ongerexlsts An impairmaent loss is reversed if

there has been a change in the estlmam used to determine the recoveratile amount. An
impairment Ioss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the camying amount that would have been determined, et of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had beenrecognised. '

€.15 Employee benefits

a Shortierm employee benefits
Short-term _employee- beneﬂts are those beneﬁts other than termination benefits, due to be
settled withm one year after the ‘end of the period in which'the services have been rendered,
end are -accownted for using normal accrual acoounting Shost-term employee benefit

obhgatons are measured on an undiscounted basis’ and are expensed as the rerated service is
provided.

A.provision is récognised for. the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus it
the Group hasa present legal or-constructive:obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
sefvice provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated religbly.

b Defined contribution plans
“The Group' operates g defined contribution plan A defined tontribution plan is a post-
.employment benefit plan under which an éntity. pays ﬁxed contributions into a separate entity
and will havé no legal or’ constructive. obllgahon to pay. further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pensian plans are.recognised as an employee beneft
expense in the i income statemant when they are due. Prepald contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a regucton'in fiture payments is avaiiable,

¢ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised ‘as an. expense when the Group is committed to a formal
detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide
term\nahonbmeﬁtsasamdtofaneﬁermedetoemwmgevo!um redundancy. Tesrnination
-benefits for voluntary redundancies are lecogrusedasanexpenselfmeerouphasmadeanofferof
voluntary redundancy, mspmbablemattheoﬁervdnbeawepted and the number of acceptances
‘can be estimated reliably.. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting period,
then they are discounted to their present value,

d Employee Participation Plan
The Group offers its empioyees to pemcxpete in the capital of All Options Internationg Holding
BV, in the form_of ceified | depositary recelpts (‘CDRs") on shares of Ail Options Internationa!
Hoadmg B.V. under an Employee Participation Plan (*the Plan”). The Pian is executed through
Stichting Administratiekantoor All. Options Intemational Holding {"StAK").

Kay terms and conditions of the Plan
The key terms and conditions of the Plan are:

* The Group :ssues common shares'to SIAK, StAK sell%@hknm@m@@g CORs

that have not yet been (re)sold to participants are ma:nly held by the Compatiyent to which our report dated

* CORs do not have voting rights. Entitiement to deend i8 ssmﬂar fo the rights of the common
‘sharehoiders. | 23 JUN 2010
* Participants can voluntarily seit their CORs to the Group et fair value.
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« Participants dre cbliged to sell.and transfer the CDRs when the employmem agresmert 'is
terminated, the employes is disabled for rnore fhan 50% of in case'ihe SK conditions of
administration prescribe a mandatpry transfer.

As the CDR agreement contains an obligation to repurchasé the CDRs from the participants,
this repurchase obligation gives:rise to a- financial liability measured initially at the presert
value of the redemption-amount (which is its*fair value) and, reﬁecl any subsequent fair value
:changes in incoms. The fair valua is based ona’ market approach In the market approach the
valye of a business’is derived from valuaﬂon rnurhples of -publicly traded firms in similar lines-
‘and transactions of comparable oompanies '

C.16 Revenue
Net trading income
Revenues from’market making-/-proprietary tradmg activities consist primarily of net trading
income_eamed by the Group from Yrading as' pnnupal ln competmon with other traders. Net
trading income from market making activities represenm trading gains net of-trading losses..
These are recorded In theincome statement underanet trading revenue.

A market maker trades for rls own accourt, at hig'own risk, and thus performs the function of
prowdrng liquidity to the market. A-market maker fulfits this finction in competition with others,
and’ the activities do generally,not generate any’ comrmssion Market making revenue also
includes trading gains or losses. following arbitrage activities.

interast income and expensa dividend income and axpensas, and exchange gains and losses
associated with trading are nduded in revenues because they form an important efement of the
result eamed on pos’t‘pons in securifies owned and securities.sold, not yét purchased. Other
interest, dividend and exchange results are included infinance income and finance expenses.

All security transactions are recorded on trade’ date Interest is included in revenue only if
interest hag a direct link with trading. Interest on Ioans and other interest not refated to trading
may therefore not be included.

Sales from goods sold
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
ofthe consrderation received or receivable, net of returng, trade discounts ang volume rebates.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed
sales-agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, recovery of the.consideration is probal:le. the associated costs and possible return
‘of goods.can be estimated reliably, there is no conhnuhg management involvement with the
fgoods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will
be granted and: the amount can_be measured reliably, then the discourt is recognised as a
reduction of revenue as the sdes are recognised:

e timing of the transfers of fisks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the
contract of ‘sale. For sales of tamber and paper- products —usua angfer occurs when the
product is’ recalved at'the customer's warehouse; howeve ’
transfer occurs upon Ioadlng the goods onto the ‘relevafiticanie *mfﬁmj,%eller
Generaly for such products the buyer has no right of retum. For saIEs %@v\m_tqp\ro tranataryr tepart dated
QCCUrs upon receipt by the customer.

23 JUN 7010
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Rental income

Rental income from irivestment property I recogrised in pfofit o loss on a straightdine basis
over the term-of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integrat part of the
total rental income, cver the term of lhe lease. Rental income from subleased propetty is
recognised as other income,

Expenses 7
Expenses are recognised in the reporting period they relate to.

Lease payments
Payments mads under operating 'eases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-
ling' basis over the tem of tha lease.

1

Net finance costs

Finance income. comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale
financial assets), dividend income; gains on'the. dlsposal of available-for-sale financial assets
and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest
income. s recognised .as it accrues In profit or'loss, uslng the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or. loss on the date that the Group's right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities‘is the ex-dividend date.

Finance costs comprise ‘inferest expense ‘on - Borrowings, urwinding of the discount on
provisions, changes i the-fair value of financial assats at faw value through profit of foss and
impaimment ‘losses recogmsed on ‘financial assets Borrowing costs that are not directly
atributetle to the aoqursltton construction or producnm of a qualifying asset are recogrised in
profit o loss using the effective mterest meathod.

Foreign currency gains and losses afe reported on a net basis:

Income tax

income taxes, reported in the income. statement; oniy mclude corporate income taxes. Sales
texes; including VAT and w;thholdlng taxes, exczse du'mes and social law taxes are not
included. Income taxes. ‘comprise of domestic taxes (taxatxon iin the Netherands), foreign
{fiational) taxes and local- taxes as they are based on income.

Income tax expense comprises.curent and-deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in the income statement elcept to the axtént that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity or in comprehensive indome.

Current tax is the expected tax payabie or receivable on the taxable income or foss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substartively ‘enacted at the reporing date. and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
l

Deferred lax is determined using' the balance, sheet method, providing for temporary
differences between the camying amounts of assels and habmties for ﬁnanual reporting
purposes and the'amourits used for taxation. purposes. -.';; 2 ot reoognised for the
following temporary differences; the initial recognﬁon d fAXIhe initial recognition of
assets or Ilaballtles ma u'ansact:on whichis not a busmess oombmatlon ahd i Atk heither

accounting nor taxable-profit, and differences relatmg to investments ¥ SUBERILHEYTS Y repon dated

extent that they probably will not.reverse in the foreseeable future and t?asﬁmwmme
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roversal can ba'controled. ‘Deferved tai is- measured at the tax rates that are expected o be
applied to:the’ temporary differences whan they reverse based on the laws that have been
enacted or subslantlvely enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax. agsets and ||ab|mies -are offset. if thera i8; @ legally ‘enforceable right-to offset’
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate o income taxes fevied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settie current
tax liabilities ‘and assets on’a net"basis of their lax assets and Ilabllmes will be realised
simultaneously.

A deferred tax-asset is recognised only to the. extam that it is probable that future taxable
profits ‘will be available againgt which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed &1 each reporting date and are reduced to the exdent that it is no longer probabie that
the related tax benefit will ba realised;

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Cértain'new aocountmg standards and IFRIC’ (lntematnonal Flnancial Reporting Interpretations
Cominittge) interpretatxons adopted by the European Umon tave been published that are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010. Other than those adopted early
a8 explained in Note 2(), a.number of new standafds; amendments to standards and
interpretations are not yet effective for the yiear énded 31. December 2009, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these will have an effect
on the consolidated finandial statéments of the Group, except for Eligitle Hedged ftems -
Amendment to [AS 39 Financial Instruments: Racognaon and Measurement, which clarifies
the existing principles that detenmne whether speclﬁc nsks or portions of cash flows are
eligible for designation in a hedglng relationship. The amendment, which becomes mandatory
for the Group's 2010, oonsohdated financial staternents, is not expected to have-a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements,

Below is a list of standards and’ interpretatlons in, lssue at 1 June 2009 that are effective for
arinuat reporting dates beginfing after 1 January 2009 The list hlghlights the effective date of
the requirements. Subsequent amemfments to these standards and interpretations are not
igentfied separately below.

Révised First-time Adoption of infamaticnal Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 1 Issue date: November 2008
Efective date: 1 July 2009

Revised Business Combinations -
{FRS 3 Issue date: Jaruanf 2008
Effective date: 1 July 2002

Amended Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-cument Assefs Heid for Sale and Disconfinued
IFRS.5 Opérations as-a result of Improvemens to Inramahona! Financial Reporting Standards
2008

Issue date: May 2008
Effective date: 1 July 2009 k; DM‘

. KEMG Audit
Amended Consolidated and Separate Finandial Statements Document to which our report dated
IAS 27 Issue:Date: January 2008
Effective date: 1 July 2009 23 JUN 2010
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Amended Amandment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ~
Eligitte

|AS 39 Hedged ltems

I53ue Date: July 2008

Effective date: 1 July 2008

IFRIC 47 Distributions of Non-cash- Assets to Owners
tssue date: November 2008
‘Effective date: 1 July 2008

Various Impmvemenrs to Intematlional Financisi Reportmg Standards 2009
lssue date: Apri 2009
Effective date: Deatt with on a standard by standard basis; generaly 1 January 2010

Financial risk management

Financial risk managementstrategy

The objective of the Gmup is to achieve medium to long-term capital growth through investing
in a selachan of unlisted private companies trading malnly in‘the euro zone. The Group's

actMues expose ttoa variety of financial risks; mamet risk’ {including currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and I:qurdly risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the rigk that changss in market prices, such as inferest rates, equity prices,
foreign exchange retes-and credil. spreads (not relatlng to changes in the. obliger's / issuer's
credit standing) will affect the Groups income or the. value of its holdings of financial
instruments; The objective of market risk managemenit is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parareters, while optimising the retum on risk.

‘The Group's market investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties
.about future- values: of the Instruments, The performance ‘of ‘the Group's investments is

monitored by the Management Board on'a monthly basis.

Interest rals risk

The principal rigk to which’ non-tradlng porttol:os are exposed is interest rate risk. Intérest rate
risk.is the risk of ioss from fuctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial
instruments because of a'change in'market interest rates.

The Group manages interest rate. risk thmugh rnorrthly risk reporting of the exposures to
changes in the differént interest rate ciirves. The Group hedges the interest rate risk through
fixed income futures in cage the expasure exceeds: oertasn thresholds..
Currancy sk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futute cash fiows of a firiancial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign e:kmar'ige rates. The %Lﬁ?'ﬂ'ﬁ s the currency risk
by exchanging excess foreign cumency cash positions into E ¢ I L

KPMG Audit
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Other.price risk

Other price risk is the.risk the Group is exposed to regardmg share prices and commodity
prices on its trading financial assets and trading ﬁnancml I|abllmes For the option positions, the
implied volatility of the underlying contract is an addmona risk factor,

The. rigk ‘exposure Is- managed by strict controls ‘and limits relating to expesures,
concentrations, pricing and valuation paramsters.and natural hedging between long and short

positions. For the Group, exposure limits are defined in.terms of nét individual and aggregats

position sizes and alsc based oh inventory characteristics such as Yyield curve-exposure and
exposure with respect to aption risk parameters, such as the exposure on:price changes and
the exposure on.changes inthe implied volatility.

Liquidity Risk

I_|qu:dlty risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in-meeting obligations associated
with its financial Ilabillties “The risk exposures the Group assunes in its trading activities should
be fully. s_upporledby an adequate capital position. The Group's approach to managing liguidity
is to-ensure that its capital position Is sufficiently strong to’slipport all derivatives risks on a fully
consolidated basis and that adsquaté.capital is. maintained in all group entities engaged in
these activities, ’

The risk-department momtors the tradmg posmons and I:quldlty position on-a daily basis. For
trading activities liquidity fisk-arises from volume dedlne in' the market. The Group manages
this liquidity risk by avmd!ng concentratiors in certain positions.

Liquidity risk’ is managed by the haircuts calculated and raported by the clearing organisations:
The haircut measures the exposura of the Group from secumy positions. The haircut is set
against the-Net liq: The cleanng orgamzauons requ:ra that the cash pasition (Net lig) exceeds
the’ exposure from the Group's -security position as measured by the haircut. The freely
available cash consists of the-cash directly avauable at the clearing organisations, taking into
account 100% of the hazrcul

Credit Risk _

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group'if a customer or courterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk that could fesutt in counterparties
defaulting is Ilmrted ‘as the Group's operations aperal.e on regulated exchanges, since the
settiement risk is essertially transferred.to reoognzed Clearing orgamsaﬁons

The.risk management depértment monitors the balanoe held at clearing grgatisations. Excess
cash and cash equwelents: held at clearing organlsallons hefd are invested in shor-term
maeney market. mstrurnents The Greup minimizes its exposure to credit risk by.following strict

poficies governing its chmce of counterparties. Net Ilq posmons with clearing organisations are
monitored on a'daily basis.

Capital Management
The Board's poficy is to maintain & strong capital base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence 'in“order to sustain future_development of the-b ;~Fhe Group manages its
capiial structure and makes adjustments to it, in light.of g I’lr nom'c conditions. To
maintain or adjust 'itg b'gpibl s_.trudwe, ttie - Group ma) o ?é\ﬂﬂﬂﬁ,d fayment io
sharehoiders or issue newshares,

23 JUN 2010
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F Fair value financial instruments

‘TMtab!ebdmsamOMEaGmmsdassifmhmdead\dassofﬁnama!assetsand liabiities,
"and thei fair values (exdluding accrued interest).

in EUR x 1,000 Fair Valus Canying Value
, 2008 2008 2009 2008
.31 Decamber ‘
Traﬁmg assets 1, 009 812 1,313,595 1,008,812 1,913,695
Due from clearing institutions 137, 454 75, 187 137,454 75,187
Trade and other receivables. 40,884 28,242 40,884 28,242
Other non-current financid assets 29,358 41,502 29,358 11,502
Cash and cash equ:valents . 55 243 72,084 55243 72,094
272751 1600620 1,272,751 1,500,620
Loans payable 2138 2138 -
Trading liabifities 974, 008 1,010,156 974,008 1,010,156
Due to cleasing organisations: 69, 728 205,547 59,728 205,547
Tradde and other liabilitles: 40, 278 62 920° 40,276 62,920

1088:150 1278623 1,088,150 1,278,623

The fair value’ of the. financial-assets and Ilaballties are included at'the amount at which the
instrument could be axchanged ina current transaction between willing parties, otier thanin a
forcad or quu;dauon sale: The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

Cash-and shori-term deposits, due from and ‘due to clearing organisations and other curent
receivables, and other liabilities approximate their carrying, amounts largely due to the short-
term rigturities of these instruments. The canying value of the loans payable is approximates
the fair value.

Fair value of trading assets and trading liabilities is based on price quolations at the reporting
date.

KPMG Audit
Document 19 which our repont dated
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Fair value hierarchy

As at December 31, 2004, the Group held the bllowing financial instruments measured at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level2  Level3
31 December 2009
Trading assets, ) 1,009,812 - 1,009,812 - -
Due from ¢learing institutions 137 454 137.454 - -
Trade and other receivables :40,884 40,884 - -
-Other financial assets 29,358 29,358. - -
[Cash and cash equivalents 55243 55,243 - -
1,272 751 1,272,751 - -
Loans payable 2138 . 2138 - -
Trading liablities 874, 008, 974,008 - -
Due to clearing organisiions. 69,726 69,728 - -
Trade and ather liablities 40,276 40,278 - -
1086150 . 1,086,150 - -

The Group uses the follcwing hierarchy for deterrrﬁmng and disclosing the fair value of financial

instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1. quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2 other techniques for which all the inputs which have a-significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, elther directly or indiractly;

Level 3: ‘techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that

-are not obsenvable market data.

3
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Business combinations
Acquisitions In 2009

Acquxsmon of Saen Opuons Holding B.V.

On March 19, 2009 the Group acquired 100% oftha voting sharestaen Options Holding BV., a
trading company based in the Netherlands.

The falr value of the, idertifiable assels and. Iiabllmes of Saen Opt:ons Holding B.V. at the date

of aoquismon were.- |

In EUR x.1.000
Asgets: :
Properly, plant and equlpmant . : 3315
Intanglble assets 4413
Trading assets ' 88,796
Dus from clearing institutions ! 60,043
Other receivables ' 17,674
Cash and cash equivalents 10031
184272
Liabilities-
Prowsmns ‘ (24,887)
Deferred tax liabilities: - {647)
*Trading liabilites (103,948)
Due to clearing institutions. ‘ "(30,125)
Other liabifities 5,441)
{165,048
Totat identifiable net assets at fair valug 18,224
-Goodwil afising on acqutsihon (Note 2) 8764
_Purchase consideration transferred 21.988.

The fair. value of me mtangble assets mprlses the value of .the software developed by the

aaoquuree wh:ch i$ recognized separatefy

Thegoodwill is” attributable mainty’to. the skuls -and techncal talent of. the traders, and the

‘synergies expected’ to' be ‘achieved from Integratmg the company into the Group's exnstmg-
‘trading activities. None of the goodwil recogmsed is expected to be deductible for income tax.
purposes,

'|

‘From the date of acquisition, :Saen Options Holding B.V. has contributed EUR ‘10,179, of
Tevenue-and 'EUR 5,249 loss to the net resutt before, taxes of the Group: If the combination.

had taken p|ace at the beginning.of the year, revenue from continuinig operations would have.
been’ EUR 27, 292, and the loss from continuing operatlons for the Group would have been

KPMG Audit
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Purchase consideration
In EUR x 1,000'

Tolal cash consideration
Cash acquired
Net cash.outfiow

Analysls of cash flows on acquisition
in EUR x 1,000

Cash conssderaﬂon settied
Transactlon costs of the aoqunsiuon
Net cash acquired with the acquisition

Net cash flow on acquisition

27,088

(10.031)
17,0857

(27,888)
(336)
10.031

(18,293)

The:transaction costs have been included in general and administrative expenses in the profit
and.loss statément and in cash’ flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement.

Acguisition of Nederlandse Intérnationale Bosbouw. Onderneming: B.V. (‘NIBO")

On January 8, 2009 the Group obtamed control by acquiring the majority of the voting rights in
NIBO, a company based in-the Netherlancb NIBO and.ils subsidiaries operate and'maintain
plantations in Costa Rlca. During 2008 the Group incressed its interst in NIBO from 7.70% to
49.01%. The fall‘ value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NIBO at the date of acquisition

Initials for identification purposes

were:
1 EUR x 1,000
Assets
Land and buldings 17,924
Plam and aquipment 1,547
‘Biological assets. 38,434
Ottier nofi-current assats 58
Inventories 2,802
Receivables 718
Cash and cash equivalents 3561
66.041
Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities . (2.320)
lNon—currant Ila.ulmes (2.420)
‘Current liahilities (767}
(2507}
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 60,534
‘Non-controlling interests measured at fair value {47,342)
Intesest previously acquired measuréd at fair value {12,789y
Goodwill arising on aoquisrion ) kl -
Purchase consideration transfemed. KPMG Augir 403
Do
From’ the date of acqutsmon N|BO has_contributed EUR 3,710 of ravenuéugt‘w?guﬁmw Qi renort dated
loss to the net result before taxes of the Group. 2 3 JUN zmo
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Purchase conslderation

in EUR x 1,000

Totat cash consideration 403
Cash acquired : {3.478)
Net cash inflow (3,078)
Analysis of cash flows on acquisition

In EUR x 1,000

Cash considaration settled (403
Net cash acquired with the acquisition 3.479
Net cash flow on acquisition 3,076

Acquisition of additional interest [n NIBO ‘

During 2009, the: Group acquired :an additional *39.60% of the.voting shares of NIBO,
increasing its ownership to 89.70%. A cash consideration of EUR 9,054 was paid to the non-
controfing interest shareholders. The canrying-valye of the additional interest acquired was
EUR™0,649. The difference of EUR 1,505 bétween fhe consideration and the canying value
of the interest acquired:has been recognised in retained eamings within equity.

Intangible assets
in EUR x 1,000
Cnpll.lilnd
Davelopment

Goodwill  Exponditure Softwars  Other Tolal
Cost o ’
Balance at 1.January. 2008 : - 275 143 418
Additions P a7 = 475
Balance at 31 December 2008 - 475 215 143 893
Balance at 1 January 2009 - 475 275 143 803
Additiors - 1312 151 - 463
Acquired through business combinatiois 8,764 —- 443 98 13278
Balance at 31 December 2009 8,764 I87 4838 241 14831
Amortisation and Impalitnent losses
.Batance at 1 January 2008 - - - - -
Amartisation for the period - - _54 -  _54
Balance at 31 December 2008 — - 54 - 54
Balance at 1 January 2009- - - 54 - 54
-Amortisation for the period - 79 1,008 143 1,318
Impairment loss - _- 3118 —= 3475
Balance gt 31 December 2009 —_ I8 4305 143 4547
Carrylng amounts
‘Balance at 1 January 2008 - . 275 143 418
‘Balance at 31 December 2008 - 475, 143 839
Balance at 31 Decamber 2009 8,764 72 88 10,084

In November 2009, management-decided that the- licensing of softward BViffertsisitl be
discontiniied in the beginning of 2010. As aresult, the capitalized softwarEbscame \mpédiddoer report dated
and an impairment loss of EUR 3,175 was recorded:

. ' 23 JUN 201[132
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Goodmll is subject to- annml Impaxrment testing. At the end of 2009, the recoverable' afmount of
the cash-generating untt was estimated based on its value in use. The assessmant was prepared

for five years based on achual of 2008 and Q1, 2010 taking into accourt the: strategic decisions,
using a zero %growu-nandaWACCoHO% Basedunuusassassment.m recoverable amourt
of the cash-generatng—mtts was detefmined to be- hlgher than its camying amourt, and therefore
no 1mpamnemwas recognised. The camying amuunt of goodmll at December, 31, 2008 was EUR

8,764 (2008: EUR: 0).

Property, plant and equipment

in EUR x 1,000
Land and
Bulldings
Cost
Baldnice gt.1 January 2008 -
Additions 10,500
Digposds
Balance at 31. December 2008 10,500
Balance at1 January. 2009 10,500

‘Acquired through business combinations 17,924
Additions -

Dtspusals -
Trans!ahcm (416}
Balance at'31 December 2009 28.008
Depréclation and impdrment losses

Balance at 1 January 2008 -
Depreciation for the period i)
Disposals e
Batance at 31 December 2008 18
Balance at 1 January 2009 76
Impairment loss 1,822,
Depreciation for the period _286-
‘Balance at 31 December 2009 2184,
Carrying amounts _

Balance at 1 January 2008’ -
Balance at 31 Decermber 2008 10,424,
.Balance at 31 December 2009 25,824

Plant and
Equipment
1

719

Furniture,

Fixtures
Hardware  and Cars Total
2,217 445 2,662
1538 4538 16576
4408 4963 18,868
3405 4963 18,868
862 2453 22,786
942 1,563 2674
- (58) @1
- - (455)
5208 f823 41782
514 76 590
570, 304 1,040
(338) (1 (355
748 A% 1278
748 453 1,275
- - 2,351
2815 1798 5293
2861 2281 891¢
1,703 369 2,072
2659 4,510 17,503
16848 6,672 34,863

An impaiment loss.of EUR 2,351 was'recorded for property, plant and equipment; as the

camying value excéeded the recoverable amount.

Change of estimates

From September 2009 onwards the Group has changed its estimate of the useful lives of
hardware from five to two years. The impact'of this change.of estimate amounts to EUR 1.9

miltion.

|
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Investment property
i EUR x 1,000 )
2009 2008

Cost

Balance &t 1 January 12,968 9,168
Additions 1.047 3,800
Balance at 31 December 14015 12968
Depreciation and imparment losses

Balance at 1 January 149 .
Depreciation for the period 284 148
Balance at 31 Decerrber 433 48
Carrying amounts .

Balarice at 1 January 2008 9,168
Baiance at 31 December 2008 12,819
Balance at 31 December 2009: 13,582

Investment pmpemes are stated at cost less accurmulated depreciation. The fair value of the
investment properties is not materially différent from its book value.

Biological assets

In EUR x 1,000

2009
Balarice at 1 Jahuary 2009 .
Acquired thréugh business combinations 39,434
increase in valiie of newly planted areas 1,043
Value of forest resources sold {1,108)
Change in fair value 3,189
Effect of movement in exchange rates’ ' _{989)
Batance at 31 December 2009 41,568

At 31 December 2008 standing | timber compﬁsed;approxnmatety 3,270 hectares of teak free
plantatlons which range f from: newly established plantations to plantations that are 30 years old.

‘Due to the lack of a funning market for teak plantaﬂons the Group opted to use the discounted
value of estimated future cash flows. The estimated. cash flows ‘were based on up-to-date

information aboid the status.of the:plantations - at September. 30, '2009, relying on spot checks

-carried out across the plantations and a forecast growth in forest resources in accordanca with a

forestry model. Future market prices and costs up to the sale had been forecast also.

The,varu_es of the plantations wene updated as at Septemb‘er 30, 2009 and 2008 in accordance

-with the above mathod. In deing 50, the following assumptions were used in the valuation mods):

Inflatior: 2%
Redlistic increase in market prices (over and above Inﬂahon) 1%
Dlsoount rate 129%

kb
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Revaluation of forast resources’
2009
Increase due to effect of dlsooun! rate because change of year 1,067
Ad;ustment to growth pro;ectiom due to current weither behaviour 1430
Net effect of growth-related changes 2497
Increase due to. hlgher future pﬂoea 9
Increase as a result of new plamjngs _618
3,122
Change in value in'iog-yard trees 627)
Pianting costs In new areas’ {874)
1621

Biological assets may be subject to discase or'to the effect.of natural disasters such as
hurricanes, figods or fire; Management‘s opinion | ts that the .exposure of their plantations to this
fisk i8 minimum. Due'to’its physical location, the' area is not exposed to hurricanes or to the
effect of floods.. Also due to the age of!ha p(armton it is not susceptible to the effect of fire.
Middle aged teak is ﬁra-resnstant and the risk of dlsease is minimum since the plantation has
never shown this: type of problem; and tis under the condmons preferred by the selected
species, There is also the risk of. decréasing teak pnces but ‘management considers that, given
the wordwide. conditions and trends of production and oonsumphon of precious woaods, this is
not likely to occur in the long run,

. Investment in associates

The Group's share of profit in'its equity accounted investees for the year was a loss of EUR 24
(2008 proﬁt of EUR 263}. In addition, the Group recogmzed negative goodwill of EUR 2,115 in
2008 with respect to its share increase in NIBO. In'2008, the Group has not recognised losses
of EUR 11, since the, Group had no. obligation in respem ofthese losses.

In 2009 and 2008 the Group did not receive dividends fom any of its investments in equity
accourted investees.

The associates’ statement of financial position:

in thousands of suro NIBO. Travelet Blzzchannsl
‘2008
Current assets 7.078 3,659 11
Non-cuirent assets 58,963 348 45
‘Current liabiilties {4, 740) (3,251) 31
Non-current liabilities (787) - (200)
Non-controlling interests ) {34,439 - -
.Equity attributable to shareholders 26,005 768 (175)
Revenues 7,785 13,268 {12)
Profit/{ioss) 1,801 25% (35)
Percentage of ownership 49& 30.00

‘ . - . PMG Audit
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2009

CUrrent assets
Non-current assets-
Current liabilities
Non-current lizbilities
Equity

Revenues-
Profit/(loss)

Percentage of ownership-

Carrying amount of the Investment

N/A

Duyring 2008 the Group increased its stake in NIBO by 41. 31%. In 2009, the Group obtained
control (see Note 1). Bizzchannd was quusdated at the end of 2009,

Other aon-current financial assets
In EUR x 1,000

The Group granted a mortgage oan to key management Ses als¢ note ZBcument to which our report dated

2009 2008
Available for sale assets - invesiments in-unquoted participations 3,541 4,075
At fair value through proit and loss - investments in rnortg,_age portfolios. 6,481 -
Loans dus fom participations o 1900 2452
Loans due I'o_m managing directors 2540 2,540
Loans due from third parties 14478 2,435
Other investments 418 -
2308 11502
The movement during the year was as follows:
1 EUR x 1,000 AFS- 'FVTPL
Participations  Mortgage  Loans  Other Total
Portfollos
Balance at 1 January 2008 2,326 - 5435
Additiors '3,309 - 7,681
Dispdsals and redemptions {1,560} = {1614
Balance at 31 December 2008 4075 = 11502
‘Batance at 1 Jariuary 2008 4075 - 11,502
Acquiréd through business combinations. - 58 58
:Additions - 380 22,183
Impairment losses recognsed (520} < (1,722}
.Changes in fair value oo - (444)
Disposals and redemptions (14) 2219
Balance at 31 December 2009 '?_t.ﬁﬂl

KP&& ﬁlmt'!%a“;"jg
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1.

Taventories
in EUR x.1,000"

Hearing aids

Téak logs

Semi-finished products

Finished 'goods and goods far resale:

Trading assets and liabilities
In EUR X'1,000

Trading assets
Options iong
Stock Jong
Trading Habllities.

Options short
StocK short

Due from / to clearing institutions

in EUR x 1,000

2009 2008

1,198 674
386 .
548

a7 —

2249 614
2008 2008

757692 978,882

252120 336703
2009 2008

742541 868,318

231467 141837
874008 1.010.156

Amounts_due from clearing’ orgarizations represents cash in the clearing accounts of e

Cash long

-Cash short

Trade and other receivables
In EUR X 1,000

Trade receivables
Taxes and social security

[Prepaid expensas

VAT

"Léans payable

‘Other current receivables

trading positions from trading activities. The amounts due to clearing orgsnizations refate to the
-funding of the trading positions resutting from trading activities.

2009 2008
137,454 75,187

69,728 205547

i

2009 2008
374 161
20853 5372
‘604 425
462 183
1,995 -
7596 5396

Ly 40864
KPMG Audit
Document ta which our report dated
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the transiation- of ‘the financial statemems of foreign

AWJG

Taxes and sodal socurity

An amount of EUR 15 miliion of corporate income tax has been prepaid as a result of lega!
prooeedngs in whloh fhe former Saen group is invoived with' the Dutch Tax- Authorities
regarding the fiséal valuation of optlons For further detalls see Note 14.

At Decernber 31, 2009, the. Grodp has.a. di\ndend fax receivable amounting to EUR 3.7 million
{domestic EUR 3.1 milion and foreign dividend tax of EUR 565) The receivab!e originates from
both'the acquisition of ‘Saen as well as- AQH. However regardmg the former Saen trading
ertities. dividend:tax on so.called unsetted short’ posrttons conceming 2008, 2007 and 2008
has been reclaimed and received. After the.acquisition of Saén it has been decided that the:
redalm of the dividend tax on unsettied short positions :should be paid back to the Tax
Autherities.. Consequently the total. Dutch dividend tax receivables as of December 31, 2008
amountto EUR 1.3 million.

Cash and-cash equivalents

in EUR x 7,000, . 2009 2008

Cash at banks andon hand 56243 71,492

Short-term deposits - £02
85243 12.004

The cash is freely avallable to the Graup, | except for an amount of EUR 5.9 milian
(2003 Euro 410). smn term deposm are made for varylng periods from one day fo three
months, depending an the immediate cash requtrements of the Group, and eam interest at the
respective short-term deposrt retes.

Capital and reserves

Ordinary shares issued and fuly paid

Ordinary shares
Jn thousands of shares 2009 2008
L
Onissue at 1 January 18 18
Issued for cash - -
On igsue’at 31 December: 18 18
Authorlsed shares

The tatal authorised .number of ordinary shares is 200 (2008: 200) with a nominal vatue of

‘EUR 450, of which 40 are issued and fully paid-up:

Legal reserve _
The Group recorded a legal reserve for the amount of capitalized development expenditure..

Forelgn curmency translation reserve

The foreign cumency: transation reserve. ls used’ to record’ exchange ‘differences arising from
ea—in accordance with the

reserve is deemed to be

trahsition In accordance with 1o IFRS 1 the forelgn curregg
zero ot the transition date. .

KPMG Audit
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.Other. provisions mainly comprises of a festructuring provision for termi Eons ! de'htf‘%
‘quarter of 2009 the Group. staned to restructure. AOIH gnd a provision o EW lﬁ‘

AWJG.

Dividends _ ) _
The following dividends were declaed and paid bythe Group:

For the yaar ended 31 Décember.

in EUR x.1,000 2009 2008
Dividend 21,717 8000
See alsopage6and 7
Provisions
In EUR X'1,000 |

: Onsrous Tax Other Total

contracts

Batince at 1 January 2009 - - - -
Acquired through business compinations - ‘24887 -. 24887
Provisions made during the period ‘ 2628 19082 2765 24476
Pravisions used during the period { o84y - {479} (1483
Balance at 31 Decamber 2008 . 1844 43969 2286 47,899
Non-current’ . 805 43,969 - 44574
Current 1039 __ - 228 3325

Onerous contracts

During the year ended 31 Decamber.2009 the Group obtained, dué to the Saen acquisition,
additional office space in Amsterdam,-the Netheilanids. The decision was taken to consolidate

‘the trading activilies into one location, As'a result one of the premises was abandoned, and a

provision of EUR 1, 733 was recogmzed Due to economic circumstances it is not expected that

“the office space can be sublet.

Also and due to the aoquls!tion the Group . had many IT related contracts, connections,

licensees, memberships etc twice. We formed a provusxon for IT related items which have been
canceled and are no-longer in use:

Tax
At December 31, 2008 the Group had no tax prov:mons Afer the acquisition of Saen the total

tax provislon amounts to- EUR 44 million. Part of the tax provision refates to the fiscal valuation

of opﬂons ‘Saen -veluates its opﬁons in aooordame ‘with the comprorms method, In
accordance with th|s method long positions are valued either at cost of lower market value and

-short posmons are valued at the received premmm or hlgher market value. Currently the tax
.authoriies are engagedin a Iegal proceeding with compeﬁtrve market makers who also fiscally

valuates their ophons on the basis of the * oompromis method The fax authorities dispute the
“compromis™ method and argue that the fiscal valuahan snould be based on the mark-to-market
method. As lorig as the legal proceedings caontmue AII Securmes (forrnerty known as Saen

-Options.B.V.) will keap on valuatlng its options on the bas:s of the “compromis™ method and
record'a provision of EUR 25 mitlion for possibie: correctims due to mark-to-market valuation.

The Group recorded.a provision: for Corporate Incorne Tax and’ Wage Tax for ‘approximately
EUR 19 mifiion,

Other provisions

been recogfiized. "23 JUN 2010
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15. Interest-bearing loans payable

16.

In EUR x.1,000 2009
Loans from non-controlling interests 638
Trust for Renewal of BPC 1,500

2.138
Balance at 1 January o .
Acquired through business combinations 2,420
Redemptions’ (177)
Translation (105
Batance at 31 December 2,128
Loans from non-controlling interests

This tterm ralates to pald-in surplus from Pen-Américan Woods (Plantatsons) S.A. repayable to:
sharehdlders,

‘Trust for Renews of BPC

The ban from Trust for Renewal of BPC has been 8ecured by & promissory Note of USD 1,828
and an additional guarantee of mongage bonds for USD 500. The, loan bears interest at the
averdge.rate of the yields obtamed by the trust- from its. investmenbs made through the BN
Vabores Puerto de Bobsa, S.A., excluding demand or short-term investments funds, plus 1%,

which for the first sémester of this year was' settled at approx:malely 5.1%. This rate will be
reviewable  and .adjustable every. six months: in' addmon to the interest rate agreed, Pan-
American Woods (industry} S.A. will rafund to the Trust at the end of every fiscal pericd, the

amount of the: income tax’ that the Trust 'must cancel oorrespondlng to the interest income
obta!ned from the ban.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are attributable to the following:

Assets Usbitities Het
In EUR x 1,000 ‘2009 2008 2009 2008 7009 2008
Deveiopment expenditure’ . - 181 11 181 1
Biologtcai assets: - - 723 - 723 -
Property, planl and equment i - 153 - 153 .
Total — ees  SLOBZ 21 057 221

At 31-December 2005 a deferred tax | rabmty of EUR 1,057 (2008: EUR 121) was recognised for
difiéfences between the tax base- and the acoounting base of property plant and equipment,
-biclogical assets and ¢Gaplalized dewlopment expendnure

Deferred income taxasset

At December 31, 2009. the Group did not re'cogns'e deferred income tax assets of
-approximately EUR 800 related to temporary tax deductibl 85, Bax loss cany-forwards
and unused tax credits ‘that can be utifised: agamst future’ JEIRAUIGNe. The decision not to
recognise such income tax assets results fom the board's assessment of th¢ hiababilitfitriteria

as stated in the apphcab!e gccounting standards m light of the _multiplenyeass: of tawogsesr report dated

mcurred in the applicable tax junsdictlons Future,uﬁhsaﬂon of the temporary tax deductible
differances, tax loss camy-forwards and unused tax credits-will be depen@@ of it 2610p's

¥ 40
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18.

-Other payables and accrued expenses

AWIG

ability to successiilly generate taxable income in the carry-forward period

Deforred tax Hability

The deferred tax liability relates to the tempora'ryfdifferenoe on property, plant and equipment
and capitalized developient expenditure, Calcuiated at the statutory tax rate of 25.5%, the

deferred.tax liability Is EUR 1,057 at December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008; EUR 121),

Movement In temporary differences during the year

Recognised Acguired: Recognissd

Balance in profit Balance through business M profit  Balance
In thousands of suro 1Jan 2008 orices M Doﬁzm:emhmum or foss 31 Dec 2009
Development expenditure - 121 121 - 60 181
Biological assets - - - L2320 {1,697) 723
Property, plant and equipment _- _ D et 183 _183
Total - 11 121 232 sgs 1057
Due to certified depository receipt holders -

in EUR x 1,000

The movement of the liability is as follows;

2009 2008
Balance at 1 January 14590 33375
CDRs repurchased (6.138) (8.504)
CDRs issued - 2,502
Dividends paid (1.732)  (8.492)
Fair value changes 2164) (2.891)
Balance at 31 December <4598 14590

The number of certified depasitory receipts outstanding at 31 December 2009 is 163,894 with
fair value of EUR 27.80 each. At 31 December 2008 286,078 cerlified depository receipts were

outstanding with a faif value of EUR 61.00 each.

Trade and other liahilities
10 EUR x 1,000 2009

2002
Wages and social security 1.490 2320
Bonuses - 8,855
Tax and social security 13226 23,482
VAT 396 275
Dividend tax 4,158 -
Acccunts payable 1,256 2972
Due to related conpanies 54 -

kPG s i

KPMG Audit
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19. Revenue
In EUR x 1,000

Net trading income

Trading resutt

Dividends feceived and paid
Interest received and paid
Fee expenses’ ’

Sale of goods

Sale of hearing aids
Sale of round and processedtimber

20. Other operating income
InEUR x 1,000

Change in far value of FVTPL mortgage portfolios
Change in fair value of biological essets

21. Personnel expenses
10 EUR X 1,000

Salaries
Social securily costs-
Bonuses-

“Wage tax _ i
Contributions to defined contribution pians
Temmination costs’

Other personne! costs

In EUR x 1,000

Depreciation

Amortisation

.Impairmant oftangible assets
Impairment of intangible’ asseéts

22. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses

p

e ana

The total number of employees as per December 31, 2008 was 554 (2008 149).

2000 2008
65,093 152,156
573 .
7.7%) 670
(14.736) (22,030)
45034 130,796
BB 189
3,710 _=
4206 188
2009 2008
{444) -
3,189 —_
4748 —_
2009 2008
18,129 9755
2,250 729
- 8,855
6,575 319
939 540
717 .
3,543 1,384
321583 21582
2009 2008
5,577 1,189
1,318 54
2,351 -
KPMGRUSt
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General and administrative expenses
In EUR x 1,000

IT costs

Rental costs

Auditors’, legal and oonsultancy fees
Marketing and communication éxpenses
Other general and administrative. expenses

Net finance costs
In EUR x 1,000°

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents
Tetal finance revenue

Interest expenses
Net foreign exchange resuts:
Total finance costs

Net finance revenue / {cost) recognised in profit ané} loss

Income tax expense
In EUR x°1,000

Current tax expense
Deferred tax-

Cumnt tax expense
Current period tax (credit)/expense

-Adjustrment for prior periods

Recond!liation of effective tax rate-
In EUR x 1,000

Profit / (loss) for.the period
Total income tax expense
Profit excluding income’ tax

tncome tex (credll)fcharge at dom&stic tax rate
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions:
Utilisation of carry forward losses

Deferred taxes recogmzed in income

‘Uhder prouded in prior penods

2009 2008
11,903 4719
4697 2,240
4,968 4,151
1,129 649
8869 1238
325685 13014
2009 008
1072 1324
1,072 1,324
P67 81
111 _
2,088 81
amg 1243
2008 2008
8,557 19257
{1.364) 121,
L1713 19378
(3938) 19,256
12,488 i
85857 18287
2009 2008

(34,397) 80,295
7173 19378

[22.224) 99673
(6.942) 25477
633 207
(8,821)
Q}HB 'R 384) 121
KPR Rt 5 a7s
dit
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The Corpany and it following subsidiaries form a fiscal unity s per 31 December 2008:

All Capital Holding B.V:

All Capital N.V.

All Bricks B.V,

Afl Monuments B.V.
AllRedBricks BY.
All Capita! Fixed Income B.V:
All Finance B.V.

Following & series” of mergers, liquidations and-sale ‘of some subsidiaries of the ACIH Group a
request to the Dutch Tax Authorities has been subrmtted 1 secure fhe fiscal unity and other fiscal
facilities after the mergers and liquidations, We have received a confimation of our request. The
AOIH fiscal iinity for corpdrate income tax compnm of the following companies as per December

H, 2@9‘

All Options international Holding B.V.

.

. All Options Intemational B.V:.
. Al Trading B.V.

. All Derivatives B.V,

. All Securities B.V.

Contingencies and commitments

Rent agreements

The Group has entered Into several rent agreements Future minimum rent payable under non-
cancellable rent agreements as at 31 December are as fa{lows

In EUR x 1,000

N 2005 2009

Within one year 1,479 1,522

After one year but not more than five years’ 1,951 3,408

More than five years - —
2430 4.530

Guarantees

The Group has issued guarantees as per December 31, 2009 of EUR 5,9 million {2008 EUR 410).

Pledges

All manies, securities which are kept by a general clearing member of All Options Intemational
Holding B.V. or by a thind' ‘party on behalf of the clearlng member or at any future time are pledged
to the relevant clearing member. Fu'thermore alt claims }which All Optlons Intemational Helding B.V.
cumrently has or will have in the future, including all rights ensumgfrom options and future contracts,
as well as any ciaims which arise on account of the exercuse of option contract are pledged to the'
relevant clearing member.

Management Share Option Plan
As pan of the acquisition of Saen 20,000 CDRs (exercise price EUR 73.20) have been granted to &
non-Group employee. The CDRs can 'be exercised on Feb 1, 2012.The Group issued an option

right for the management of NIBO 1o buy 10, 000 common stock SO 74 per share. The
option needs to be executed before July 1, 2012, Em

KPMG Audit
Credit facilities cument 10 which our report dated

The Group has issued credit facilities of EUR 17.4 million, of whichEUR 5.1 mﬁ foi was drawn per.
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List of subsidiaries !

The following are the Group's subsidiartes in.which the Group exercises control as at December 31,
2008, all are wholly owned, except othenwise dated:

Al Capital Holding B.V., regisiered in Amsterdam, The Netherlands

All Options Intematiciial B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The'Netherlands
All Optins Intemational B.V. Branch Curacao \registered in Curacao, Nethedands Antilles
Al Trading BV, registered in Amsterdam, The Neihedands
All Derivatives B.V., fagistered in Amsterdam. The Netherimds
All.Options Hdveﬂa AG; registered in Zug, Swrtzerland
All Options Curacao NV, registeradin Curauo Netherlands Antilles
All Options Intemnational Cyprus t4d., Limassol, Cyprus (in liquidation)
SFT B.V., registered in Amaterdam, The Netherlands
Atom Pro B.V., registored in Amsterdam, The Nétherlands
Al Secunties B V., Tegistered in Amsterdam; The Netheriands
All Securities B, V Branch Curacso, regstered In 6uracao Netherdands Antilles
All Energy Trading B. V registered in Amsterdam, The Netherlands (previously Saen
Energy B.V.)
All Options Hong Kong Ltd., registered in Hong Kong, Hong Kong
All Opticns Hong Kong Holding Ltd., reglstered in Hong Kong, Hong Kong
All Options Asia Hdding Ltd., registered in Hong Kong, Hong Kong
All Options Trading Lid., ragls\arad in Hong Kong, Hang Kong
All Options Asia, Ltd, registéred in Horig Kong. Horg Kong
All Options Chna Holding Ltd., registeredin Chengdu China
All Options Chengdu Lid, registered in Chengdu; China

Al

Capital N.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Nederdandse intemationde Bosbouw Dndernemlng ‘N.V., registered in Zeewoltde, The
Natherlands (89. 7%)
‘Pan-American Woods {Plantatlms) ‘SA. registered in Costa Rica (42.4%)
Pan-American Woods (Industry) S.A., ragtsteled in Costa Rica (48.2%)
‘NIBO S.A, registered ifi Panama

Exsilent B.V., registered in Amsterdam The Netherlands (75%)
Exsilent Fmance 8.V., registered in Amsterdam The Netherlands

All Bricks B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Nethedands
AH Monuments B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Netherands

All Red Bricks B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Netheriands

All Capital Fixed ncome B.V., registered mAmsta'dam The Netherlands
All Capital Ponfollo I GmbH registared in Franktnrt ‘am'Main, Gemany

All Finanie B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Neqmr_f'anas

All.Capita? Cyprus Ltd, registered in Cyprus (in liquidation)

Stichting Administratiekantoor. All Optiorie Intemational.
Netherlands (special purpose entty)

ﬁg ed in Amsterdam, The

KPA

KPMG Adsdit
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fn the.fourth quarter of 2008 the following entities wereeither liquidated, merged or sold:”

All Energy Trading B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Nethertands

Al Energy Trading B.V. Branch Curacao, registered in Amsterdam, The Netheriands

Al Options Intemational B.V. Branch Hong Kong, reglsmred Hong Kong, Hong Kong
‘Saen Options Holdlng 8.V, registered in Amsterdam The Netherlands

Saen Options Intemational B.V:, registered in Amsterdam The Nether!ands

.Saen Options Holding Management Services, fegistered i in Amsterdam, The Nethertands
Saen Trading B.V., registered in Amsterdam, The Netherlands

Saened B.V., registered in Amstérdam, The Netherlands

AtomPro Partupations B.v., regstered in Amsterdam, The Netheriands
AtomnPro-Structured Products B.V., registerad 1nAmslerdem The Nethenands

Related parties
in EUR x 1,000

Consultancy agreement
The company entered into a consultancy agreement, with key management personnel for a six
month period totalling 1o an amountof EUR 80. The agreement coased as per December 31, 2008,

Key management personnel compersation

In addition to their salaries, the.Group contributes to- a post-employment defined contribution ptan
on their behalf.-

Key managmm algo participate in the Groupfs share purchase prograrmme. Secondly four board
members received in 2009 a total of 12000 CDRs (exercrse price EUR 73.20) of which 6,000
CORs have been cancelled in the same year (issue of CORs in'2008: 9,000, cancelied 6,000). As
per December. 31,2009 9,000 CDRs are outstanding.

Key management personnel compensation. comprised:

2009 2008
Short4erm employee benefits 1,488 2,280
Post-employment benefits 126 69
Termination benefits 120 -

134 axRe

Other

The Group granted a mortgage loan to key management:of EUR 2,540 (2008: EUR 2,540). The
loan is due on 1 February 2038 and bears.at arms length interest percentage The Group obtained
a loan fram Key management of EUR 2,000 {2008: EUR 2 000) The loan is due on 31 December
2012 and bears at arms length interest percentage lf ACH s retum on its investment portfolio
exceeds a certain predetermined Furdle rate, key managernem receives 7.5% of the excess annuat
retum. No excess retum was payable on either 31 December. 2009 nor 31 December 2008.

29. Auditors® fees

Other Total
in EUR x 1,000 KPNG frms 2009
Audit fees 27 140 411
Audit refated fees 146 56 202

Tax advisory | ) 197 480
Other non-audit bes 42 1139
“Total MGLASIt 2232
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30. Subsequent events

None:

31. First time adoption

Explanation of transition to IFRSs

As stated in Nole B these are' the Groups first consolidated. financial statements prepared in
-acéordance with IFRS, Fof all pmods up to and mt:!udmg the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group prepared its.financial statements in accordance with Dutch GAAP.

The accounting policies set'out in Note C have been applied in preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009, the comparame mformatmn presented in these financial
statements for the 'year ended 31 December:2008 and ‘in the preparatuon of an opening IFRS
‘batance sheet at 1 Janusy 2008° {the Group's date of transition).

in preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet, the Group-has adjusted amounts reported préviousiy

Jin.financial statements prepared in accordance with! Dutch ‘GAAP. An explanation of ‘'how the
transition from Dutch GAAP to. IFRS has affected the Group's. financial positien, financial
performance and cash flows is set out i in the following tables and the Notes that: accomparny the
tables:

Exemptions applied

IFRS: 1 allows first-time ‘adopters certain exemptioris from the retrospective application of certain
IFRSs. The Group has applied the bllowing exemptions:

- IFRS 3 Busihess Combinations has not been applied to acquisitiors of subsidiares that
occummed before 1 January 2008. ‘

- Foreign currency translation differences for all foreign operatons are deemed to be Zero as at 1
January 2008

- IFRS.2 Shams-based Paymants has not been apptled for liabilities for cash-settied share-based
paymefits transactions that were settial before 1 January 2008.

- The Group has applied the transitional prov:s:on ‘in IFRIC 4 Determining Whether An
Amangement Contains a Leaseand assessed ail arrargements as at the date of transition.

Reconciliation of equity

In EUR x 1,000 11112008 J1ny008
Equity under Dutch GAAP 218,632 281,427
Remoasurem ant of rivestments: 621 L1
Trading assets and ligbili tes . 25 (107)
Dus to cartifled depo sitory receipt hokders (23,500} (14,580)
Tax effecto.fﬂ"m above —

Total sdjustments to equity | {14.837)
Total squity under IFRS- y
KPM udit
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Reconciliation of profit and loss for the year énded 31 December 2008

f fNect of
Buich - frangition g

in EUR x 1,000 Note - GAAP IFRS IER§
Total revenus - 132,814 2n 131,987
Costof sales _ 180 _ussy
Grozs margin 132614 @1 131,603
Personfiel expenses (21,158) (42m {21.582)
Deprociation and amortisation (1 228} (1% (1,243)
Othar expenses ‘(154 a8) 2369 {13,007}
Results from operating activities 54,825 1,148 85,871
Nat finance income/(expente) 805 518 1,924
Share in result & quity accountsd-

investaes - 2378 2,378
Profit before incoms t ax 95630 4,043 99,673
income taxes 19,378 . 19,378
Nut result for the year 76.252 4,043 80,295
Other compre hensive Income - 47 47
Total compreheniive income 76,252 4,090 80,342

el T—— ————e.  ————————

Notes'to the reconciliation from Dutch GAAP to IFRS

A. Intangible assets

Under Dutch GAAP software is included-in property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet,
‘Under IFRS, only software that is integral to property, plant and equipment should be presented as
-such. All other software should be classified as: mtanglble assets. The reclassification amounts to
EUR 275 at 1 January 2008,

B. Trading assets and liabilitles

The fair value of financial assets ‘is-detérmined using the current ask price, .and for financial
liabilities to be issued, the current market bid price. For purposes of the subsequent measurement
of recognized financial assets and financial liabilties, the current bid price must be used for financiat
assets held and the curent ask price must be'used for liablities held. With assets and liabiities with
aﬂ‘semng market risks, then the mid price is used for the offsetting risk positions, while bid and ask
prices are ‘applied to'the net open positions as appropnate

C. Forelgn currency Iranslatlon differences
The Group has elected to use the exemptlon to adjust the forelgn currency translation differences to
zero, The exemptlon has been appled to all subssdanes
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KPMG Audit
Dacument to which our report dated

23 JUN 20128

alse refers. _
Initials for ientification purposes

KPMG Accountants N.V.




Parent company financial statements

Balance sheet
In EURX 1,000

Non-current agsets
Financial fixed assets

‘Current assets ,
Amgunts due Fom shareholder
Amounts due fom subsidiary
.Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Share capital’

Translation reserve

Retained eamings

Legal reserves

Unappropriated result for the year
Total equity '

Current liabilities
Dividend tax payable
Due to-subsidary

Trade and other payables

Total equity and liabilities

oW LW

2009 2008

206,464 1266 963

206,454 266,963
. 18,530

4,158 .

8 2
4,164 ' 16,532
210,626' 283,495
18 18
{1,016) 47
239,895 186,043
708 475
(33.1 43) 80,207
206,462 268,750
4,158 .

- 18,705

. 8 -

4,186 16,705,
210,628 283,495

J
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Income statement’
in EUR x'1,000

Net loss from holding activities /
net of income taxes

‘Net profit/ (loss) from subsidiaries
Net profit/ (loas) for the year

2009 2008

(45) (88)

(33,098) 80,295

{33;143) 80,207
E' ‘ bJKPMG Audit

Document to which cur report dated

23 JUN 2010

50
alse refors.

Initials for identitication purposes
KPMG Accountants N.V.




AWJG

Notes to the parent company financial statements

A General
AW. Jakobs Group B.V. (AWJG' of 'the Companiy) was incorporated on July 4" 2006 and Is
domiciled in The Netheriands: The main acm\nties of the Comparny are paricipatng in and
managing orvanoys entities. The Group entities are listed in Note 27.

The-sole shareholder of the Company is Mr. AW: Jakobs. The Company financial statements
are presented in eurd, which is the Company's funcuonai currency. Al financial information
presanted in euro has been rounded to the nearest lhousand except when otherwise indicated

In accordance with section 2:362.8 of the Netherlands Civil Code the Company has prepared
s’ Conso\idated financiat statements under '|FRS 8s endorsed.by the European Union, The
prlncipal acoountlng pohcles adopted are the same -as those set out in the Notes to the
Consofidated Financial Statemnts in order to rnamtam consistency between the figures in the
Consolidated and Company Financial Statements except-for the valuation of subsidiaries. In
accordance with Dutch law the substdiaries are rneasr.red at net equity value instead of cost as
the Compary effactively exardses agnrﬁcant |nﬁuence over the subsidiaries.

During the year the following entities have merged
+ Saen Options intemétional B.V. (merged wnh Saen Options Holdng B.V.)
+ Saen Trading B.V. (merged with Saen Optlms Hotdmg B.V)
+ Saened B.V. (mergéd with Saen Options Hoiding B.V)
« Saen Options Holding {merger with All Options Intemiational Holding B.V.)

B Significant accounting policies

"The principles for the valuation of assets; provisions and liabilites and the determination of
earnings used in the presentation of the Cumpany;ﬁnahdal statements are the same as those
used in the preparation of the consolidated ﬁnancia! statements..

‘“The \'.‘.ompanys share in the undistributed eammgs of subsidiaries and associaled companies
i3 taken to retained eamings.

1 Financinl fixed assets

The investments ifi-subsidiaries ‘are valued:at net book value consistent with Note A. The
movements are as follows:

In EUR % 1.000 2008 2008
Balance at January 1 (NL GAAP) - 195,935
IFRS adustments - {1.314)
IFRS balance at January 1 266,963 194 621
Result subsidiary (33,098} 80,205
Currency translation adjustment {1,063) 47
Dividend distribution )] (8.000)
‘Acquisition of non-contralling interests- MG Audit
I at December.31 KP uai
Balance at December MDOCUNEN W whmtlert dated
"23 JUN 2010
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2 Cash-and cash equivalents
in EUR % 1,000 2009 2008

Cash atbanks. 6 2
Cashis freely avaiable to the Company..

3 Shareholder’s equity
In EUR x 1,000

We refer to Note 13 of tha consolidatad financial statemerits.

4 Commitments and contingencies

Nene,

5 Remuneration of the statutory directors

We refer to Note 26 of the consolidated financial statements.

Board of Directors

-Amsterdam; June 23, 2010

AW. Jakobs
CEO, '

iKbb
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AWJG

Auditor’s report

To: the shareholders of A.W. Jakobs Group B.V.
Auditor's report

Report on the financial statements

Ws heve audited the accompanying financial statements 2009 of' AW, Jakobs Group BV, Amsterdam. The
ﬁnanclal statsments consigt-of the conselidated financial statements and the compary finaicial statemerts. The
consdidatad ﬁnancial statements compriss the eonsohdated balance sheet as at 31 December, 2009, the
consdidated incoma statement, the oonsolldated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equily and
tash flows for the year then ended, and the Notes, tomprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
othar expianatory information, The company financizl statements comprise the company batance sheet as at 31
Decermber, 2009; the company income statement for.the year then: g!;le_u_t and the Notes.

Management's responsibility \

Management i8 responslbte for the prepa'ation and fair presentstuon of the financial statéments in accordance
with Internatmnal Fmancial Reporting Standards as adopted by the. European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Netherlands Cnril Code; and forthe preparatlon of the management board report in accordance with Part @ of
Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. This responmbillty includes: designing, implementing and maintaining
intemal contirdl relevant to the. prsparatlon and fair presantatuon of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whéther due to fraud or ervor; selecting and apptylng appropriate accounting policies; and
maklng accountingestimates that are reasonable in the curcumstamss

Auditor's responsibility

Our’ responsibility 18 to express.an opinion_on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with'Dutch law. This law requires that we compty with ethical requiraments and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonatle assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves perfoming procedures to obtain audit ewdence about the amounts and disclosures in the
-ﬁnanc:al statements The procedures selected depend on the aucitors iudgment including the assessmert of
the- nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or efror. in making those risk
assessrnenbs the auditor considars internal control relevant to the entrty's preparatlon and fair presentaﬁm of
the ﬁnanuat statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opimon on the effactiveness of the. entttyrs intemal.control. An audit also includes
waluatmg the appropnateress of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accourting estmates
made by. management, as well as. evaluating the overall prssentatlon of the ﬁnanual statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprizte to provide a basis for our audit
oginion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financiat statements give a true and fair visw of the financial position of AW,
Jakobs Group B.V.-as at 31 Decemer, 2008, dnd of Its resuit and.its cash:fiows for the year then ended in
accordance.with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by, the European Unicn and with Part 8
of Book 2 of the Netheriands Civt Code.

Opinion with respect to the company financial statements

In our opanron the company financial statefrients give a true and fair viewrofhe
Group B.V: 53 at 31 December, 2009, and of its resu for the year then epgicds
2 of tha Netherlands Civil Code. j

cial position of AW, Jakobs-
gardance with Part 9 of Book
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AWJG

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

2:391 sub 4 of the Netheriands Civil Code.

Amstelveen, 23 June 2010
KPMG ACCOUNTANTS N.V.

M.A. Hogeboom RA

Pursuant to the legal requirement under 2:383 sub 5 part f of the Netherlands Cvii Cade, we report, to the extent
of.our competence, that the management board report is consistent with the financial statements as required by

KPMG Audit
Dacument to which our report dated

23 JUN 200,

alse refers.
Initials for identification purposes
KPMGQ Accountants N.V.




Profit appropriation

The loss is appropriated in accordance with the article 12 of the articles of association with reads as-
follows:

12.1 " The profit as evidenced by the financid statements in their adopted form shall.be at the disposal
of the general meeting of sharcholders. ,

12.2. The Cormpany may only make payments to shareholders and beneficiaries of the _distributable,
Pprofitinsofar as its sharholders’ equity exceeds the vafue of the paidn portion of its ‘capital
augmented by its statutory or constitutional reserves, theé latter where the present Articles of
Association provide for such a corstititional reserve,

12.3. The company may pay an interim dividend during any financial year on condition that the
requirements as per peragraph two should have beeln_ satisfied,

The Board of Directors propose to-deduct the Iess of EUR'33,143 from retained earnings.

Subsequent evenfs
None-

pAsE
J .
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